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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
CRm.@7;01042

PLEA AGREEMENT FOR DEFENDANT
ROBERT DURAN

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

Plaintiff,

ROBERT DURAN,

)
)
)
)
)
)
;
Defendant. )
)
)

THIS PLEA AGREEMENT EXPIRES ON DECEMBER 11, 2006 AT 6:00 P.M.

1. This constitutes the plea agreement between ROBERT DURAN
(“defendant”) and the United States Attorney’s Office for the
Central District of California (“the USAO”) in the investigation
of fraud on the United States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. This agreement is limited to the USAO and cannot
bind any other federal, state or local prosecuting,
administrative or regulatory authorities.

PLEA
2. Defendant waives any applicable statute of'limitations,

gives up the right to indictment by a grand jury and agrees to

SERIE
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plead guilty to a three-count information in the form attached to
this agreement or a substantially similar form.

NATURE OF THE OFFENSE

3. In order for defendant to be guilty of counts one, two,
and three, which charge violations of Title 18, United States
Code, Section 1343, the following must be true: 1) the defendant

made up and participated in a scheme or plan to obtain money or

property by making false statements or material omissions; 2) the

defendant knew that the statements or material omissions were
faise and were of a kind that would reasonably influence a person
to part with money or property; 3) the defendant acted with the
intent to defraud; and 4) the defendant used or caused to be used
an interstate wire transmission to carry out or attempt to carry
out an essential part of the scheme.

Defendant admits that defendant is, in fact, guilty of these

offenses as described in counts one, two, and three of the

information.

PENALTIES AND RESTITUTION

4. The statutory maximum sentence that the Court can impose
for each violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1343
is: twenty years imprisonment; a three-year period of supervised
release; a fine of $250,000 or twice the gross gain or gross loss
resulting from the offense, whichever is greatest; and a
mandatory Special assessment of $100.

Therefore, the total maximum sentence for all offenses to

which defendant is pleading guilty is: sixty years imprisonment;
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a three-year period of supervised release; a fine of $750,000 or
twice the gross gain or gross loss resulting from the offenses,
whichever isAgreatest; and a mandatory special assessment of
$300.

5. Supervised release is a period of time following
imprisonment during which defendant will be subject to various
restrictions and requirements. Defendant understands that if
defendant violates one or more of the conditions of ahy
supervised release imposed, defendant may be returned to prison
for all or part of the term of supervised release, which could
result in defendant serving a total term of imprisonment greater
than the statutory maximum stated above.

6. Defendant also understands that, by pleading guilty,
defendant may be giving up valuable government benefits and
valuable civic rights, such as the right to vote, the right to
possess a firearm, the right to hold office, and the right to
serve on a jury.

7. Defendant further understands that the conviction in
this case may subject defendant to various collateral
consequences, including but not limited to, deportation,
revocation df probation, parole, or supervised release in another
case, and suspension or revocation of a professional license.
Defendant understands that unanticipated collateral consequences
will not serve as grounds to withdraw defendant’s guilty plea.

8. Defendant understands that defendant will be required

to pay‘full restitution to the victim of the offenses. Defendant
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agrees that, in return for the USAO’s compliance with its
obligations under this agreement, the amount of restitution is
not restricted to the amounts alleged in the count to which
defendant is pleading guilty and may include losses arising from
charges not prosecuted pursuant to this agreement as well as all
relevant conduct'inbconnection with those charges. The parties
currently believe that the‘applicable amount of restitution is
$3,164,267, but recognize and agree that this amount could change
based on facts that come to the attention of the parties prior to
sentencing. Defendant further agrees that defendant will not
seek the discharge of any restitution obligation, in whole or in
part, in any present or future bankruptcy proceeding.

FACTUAL BASIS

9. Defendant and the USAO agree and stipulate to the
Statement of Facts, attached hereto at Attachment A. The
Statement of Facts includes facts sufficient to support pleas of
guilty to the charges described in this agreement. It is not
meant to be a complete recitation of all facts relevant to the
underlying criminal conduct or all facts known to defendant that

relate to that conduct.

WAIVER OF CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS
10. By pleading guilty, defendant gives up the following
rights:
a) The right to persist in a plea of not guilty.
b) The right to a speedy and public trial by jury.

c) The right to the assistance of legal counsel at
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trial, including the right to have the Court appoint counsel for
defendant for the purpose of representation at trial. (In this
regard, defendant understands that, despite his plea of guilty,
he retains the right to be represented by counsel - and, if
necessary, to have the court appoint counsel if defendant cannot
afford counsel - at every other stage of the proceedings.)

d) The right to be presumed innocent and to‘have the
burden of proof placed on the government to prove defendant
guilty beyond a reasonable doubt. |

e) The right to confront and cross—-examine witnesses
against defendant.

f) The right, if defendant wished, to testify on
defendant’s own behalf and present evidence in opposition to the
charges, including the right to call witnesses and to subpoena
those witnesses to testify.

g) The right not to be compelled to testify, and, if
defendant chose not to testify or present evidence, to have that
choice not be used against defendant.

By pleading guilty, defendant also gives up any and all
rights to pursue any affirmative defenses, Fourth Amendment or
Fifth Amendment claims, and other pretrial motions that have been
filed or could be filed.

SENTENCING FACTORS

11. Defendant understands that the Court is required to-
consider the United States Sentencing Guidelines (“U.S.S.G.” or

“Sentencing Guidelines”) among other factors in determining
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defendant’s sentence. Defendant understands that the Sentencing

Guidelines are only advisory, and that after considering the
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Sentencing Guidelines, the Court may be free to exercise its

discretion to impose any reasonable sentence up to the maximum

set by statute for the crimes of conviction.

12. Defendant and the USAO agree and stipulate to the

following applicable sentencing guideline factors (based on the

Nov. 1, 2000 Edition of the Guidelines Manual):

Base Offense Level o USSG § 2F1.1(a)

Specific Offense

Characteristics

Loss Amount 11 USSG § 2F1.1 (b) (1) (J)
(With the government
reserving the right to
argue for a 12-level
loss adjustment)

More than Minimal

Planning 2 USSG § 2F1.1(b) (2)

Acceptance of

Responsibility -3 USSG § 3El1.1

Departure for

Substantial

Assistance

(For cooperation

already provided) -3 USSG- § 5K1.1

Defendant and the USAO agree that no additional specific offense

characteristics, adjustments, and departures are appropriate,

except for a potential motion by the government for a further

downward departure for substantial assistance pursuant to USSG

§ 5K1.1.

However, the government expressly reserves the right to

argue that a 12-level adjustment for loss should apply and
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defendant also expressly reserves the right to argue for a
sentence below the otherwise applicable sentencing guideline
range based on the factors set forth in 18 U.S.C. § 3553(a).

13. There is no agreement as to defendant’s criminal
history or criminal history cétegory.

14. The stipulations in this agreement do not bind either
the Unitéd States Probation Office or the Court. Both defendant
and the USAO are free to: (a) supplement the facts by supplying
relevant information to the United States Probation Office and
the Court, (b) correct any and all factual misstatements relating
to the calculation of the sentence, and (c) argue on appeal and
collateral review that the Court’s sentencing guidelines
calculations are not error, although each party agrees to
maintain its view that the calculations in paragraph 12 are
consistent with the facts of this case.

DEFENDANT' S OBLIGATIONS

15. Defendant agrees that he will:

a) Plead guilty as set forth in this agreement.

b) Not knowingly and willfully fail to abide by all
sentencing stipulations contained in this agreement.

c) Not knowingly and willfully fail to: (i) appear as
ordered for all court appearances, (ii) surrender as ordered for
service of sentence, (iii) obey all conditions of any bond, and
(iv) obey any other ongoing court order in this matter.

d) Not commit any crime; however, offenses which would

be excluded for sentencing purposes under U.S.S.G. § 4Al.2(c) are
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not within the scope of this agreement.

e) Not knowingly and willfully fail to be truthful at
all times with Pretrial Services, the U.S. Probation Office, and
the Court.

f) Pay the applicable special assessments at or before
the time of sentencing unless defendant lacks the ability to pay.

16. Defendant further agrees to cooperate fully with the

'USAO, the FBI, HUD-OIG, .and, as directed by the USAO, any other

federal, state, or local law enforcement agency. This
cooperation requires defendant to:

a) Respond truthfully and completely to all questions
that may be put to defendant, whether in interviews, before a
grand jury, or at any trial or other court proceeding.

b) Attend all meetings, grand jury sessions, trials
or other proceedings at which defendant's presence 1is requested
by the USAO or compelled by subpoena or court order.

c) Produce voluntarily all documents, records, or
other tangible evidence relating to matters about which the USAQ,
or its designee, inquires.

THE USAQ’S OBLIGATIONS

17. If defendant complies fully with all defendant’s
obligations under this agreement, the USAO agrees:
a) To abide by all sentehcing stipulations contained in
this agreement.
b) At the time of sentencing, provided that defendant

demonstrates an acceptance of responsibility for the offenses up
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to and including the time of sentencing, to recommend a two-level
reduction in the applicable sentehcing guideline offense level,
pursuant to U.S.S.G. § 3El.1, and to recommend and, 1if necessary,
move for an additional one-level reduction if availablé under
that section.

c) Except for criminal tax violations (including
conspiracy to commit such violations chargeable under 18 U.S.C. S
371), not to further prosecute defendant for violations of 18
U.S.C. §§ 1341, 1343, 1001, and 1956 arising out of defendant’s
conduct described in the stipulated factual basis set forth in
Attachment A. Defendant.understands that the USAO is free to
prosecute defendant for any other unlawful past conduct or any.
unlawful conduct that occurs after the date of this agreement.
Defendant agrees that at the time of sentencing the Court may
consider the uncharged conduct in determining the applicable
Sentencing Guidelines range, where the sentence should fall
within that range, the propriety and extent of any departure from
that range, and the determination of the sentence to be imposed
after consideration of the sentencing guidelines and all other
relevant factors.

dj To recommend that defendant be sentenced at the low
end of the applicable Sentencing Guidelines range provided that
the total offense level as calculated by the Court is 12 or
higher and provided that the Court does not depart downward in
offense level or criminal history category (except pursuant to,

and to the extent requested in, a motion by the USAO for a
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downward departure under U.S.S.G. § 5K1.1). Notwithstanding its
agreement to recommend the low end of the Sentencing Guidelines
range, the USAO is free to recommend any conditions of
confinement, including imprisonment, if the total offense level
falls within Zone B or C of the sentencing table.

e) Not to offer as evidence ih its case-in-chief in

the above-captioned case or any other prosecution that may be

‘brought against defendant by the USAO, or in connection with any

sentencing proceeding in any case that may be brought against
defendant by the USAO, any statements made by defendant or
documents, records, or tangible evidence provided by defendant
pursuant to this agreement. Defendant agrees, however, that the
USAO may use such statements, documents, records, and tangible
evidence: (1) to obtain and pursue leads to other evidence, which
evidence may be used for any purpose, including any prosecution
of defendant, (2) to cross-examine defendant should defendant
testify, or to rebut any evidence, argument or representations
made by defendant or a witness called by defendant in any trial,
sentencing hearing, or other court proceeding, and (3) in any
prosecution of defendant for false statement, obstruction of
justice, or perjury.

f) Not to use any information provided by defendant
pursuant to this agreement against defendant at sentencing for
the purpose of determining the applicable guideline range,
including the appropriateness of an upward departure, and to

recommend to the Court that such information not be used in

10
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determining the sentence to be imposed. Defendant understands,
however, that information provided by defendant pursﬁant to this
agreement will be disclosed to the probation office and the
Court, and that the Court may use this information for the
purposes set forth in U.S.S.G.§ 1B1.8(b) and for determining the
sentence to be imposed.

g) In connection with defendant's éentenéing, to
bring to the Court's attention the nature and extent of
defendant's cooperation.

h) If the USAO determines, in its exclusive judgment,
that defendant has both complied with his or her obligations
under paragraphs 15 and 16 above and provided substantial
assistance to law enforcement in the prosecution or investigation
of another ("substantial assistance"), to move the Court pursuant
to U.S.5.G. § 5K1.1 to fix an offense level and corresponding
guideline range below that otherwise dictated by the sentencing
guidelines, and to recommend a sentence within this reduced
range.

DEFENDANT'S UNDERSTANDINGS REGARDING SUBSTANTIAL ASSISTANCE

18. Defendant understands the following:

a) Any knowingly false or misleading statement by
defendant will subject defendant to prosecution for false
statement, obstruction of justice, and perjury and will
constitute a breach by defendant of this agreement.

b) Nothing in this agreement reqguires the USAO or any

other prosecuting or law enforcement agency to accept any

11
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cooperation or assistance that defendant may offer, or to use it
in any particuiar way.

c) Defendant cannot withdraw defendant's guilty pleas
if the USAO does not make a motion pursuant to U.S.S.G. § 5K1.1
or 18 U.S.C. § 3553(e) for a reduced guideline range or if the
USAO makes such a motion and the Court does not grant it or if

the Court grants such a USAO motion but elects to sentence above

.the reduced range.

d) At this time the USAO makes no agreement or
representation as to whether any cooperation that defendant has
provided or intends to provide constitutes substantial
assistance. The decision whether defendant has provided
substantial assistance rests solely within the discretion of the
USAO.

e) The USAO's determination of whether defendant has
provided substantial assistance will not depend in any way on
whether the government prevails at any trial or court hearing in
which defendant testifies.

BREACH OF AGREEMENT

19. 1If defendant, at any time between the execution of this
agreement and the completion of defendant’s cooperation pursuant
to the agreement or defendant’s sentencing on a non-custodial
sentence or surrender for service on a custodial sentence,
whichever is later, knowingly violates or fails to perform any of
defendant’s obligations under this agreement (%“a breach”), the

USAO may declare this agreement breached. For example, if the

12
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